fMERNERMEEZZERS

PNEUMOCONIOSIS COMPENSATION FUND BOARD

2022

ANNUAL REPORT ik






Vision?
e

a wide range of compensations to patients

with pneumoconiosis and/or mesothelioma,
providing quality rehabilitation care to the patients for
enhancing their physical condition, and, developing
and implementing preventive measures for striving to
minimize the occurrence of these diseases among the
workforce in the construction and quarry industries.
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MISSION
EJT

To provide a platform for the compensation, rehabilitation
and prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for the
betterment of the patients, the workforce in the industries as
well as the society as a whole, we endeavor to fulfill the statutory
functions in a professional and caring manner through:

° utilizing effectively the resources collected from the
construction and quarry industries in accordance with
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance to fulfill our statutory functions;

° launching rehabilitation programmes to enhance the physical
condition of the patients;

o implementing educational and publicity programmes to
raise the awareness of employers, workers, professionals and
trainees in the industries as well as the public at large on
the prevention of the above diseases, and facilitate them in
strengthening prevention works;

o building an occupational health culture among practitioners
in the industries;

o providing medical examination programme for construction
workers;

° supporting researches relating to the prevention, treatment
and rehabilitation of the above diseases; and

° maintaining a team of quality, efficient and people-oriented
staff.

CODE OF ETHICS

° practising the principles of honesty, integrity, objectivity,
impartiality, accountability, dedication, professionalism and
diligence.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION
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The Committee on Finance and Administration is responsible for
monitoring the finance, administration and investment affairs of
the Board. In 2022, although the economy of Hong Kong was
still affected by the COVID-19 epidemic, the Board continued to
exercise stringent monitoring and control on its financial position
to ensure it remained stable and healthy.

Total levy income in 2022 increased by 8.28% to $395.38 million
when compared with the value of $365.14 million in last year. The
levies from the public sector increased by 11.26% to $210.71
million, whereas that from the private sector increased by 5.14%
to $184.44 million. On the other hand, levies from the quarry
industry decreased from $0.33 million to $0.23 million.

Under the worldwide high inflation environment, interest rates
from fixed deposits increased significantly throughout the year.
Excluding fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Tracker Fund), total investment income was $46.11
million, which showed a significant increase of $13.95 million or
43.38% compared with $32.16 million of last year. The interest
income of bonds and fixed deposits increased notably by 71.27%
or $12.55 million to $30.16 million. Furthermore, the dividend
income increased from $14.55 million to $15.95 million in 2022.

On the total expenditure, it slightly decreased by 0.44% to
$308.12 million. Total expenditure of compensation was $220.52
million, representing a decrease of 2.63% as compared with
$226.47 million in 2021.

Moreover, a total of $59.61 million was spent for prevention,
research and rehabilitation, which was $5.53 million or 10.23%
more than 2021. The increase was partly due to the larger
number of rehabilitation exercises taken by patients in community
rehabilitation centres and the rise in number of workers being
examined by the Medical Surveillance Programme with the
epidemic receding.

To sum up, $285.06 million or 92.52% of the total expenditure
of the Board were paid as compensation, medical examination,
research, prevention and rehabilitation for the benefit of patients
and workers.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

Besides, a total of $0.53 million was spent for information
technology fulfilling the maintenance and recurrent needs of the
Board. Another sum of $0.23 million was spent for hardware
which was capitalised as fixed assets.

The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was $104.96
million, which was $60.95 million or 138.49% more than the
previous year. The balance of accumulated fund as at end of the
year was $3,048.14 million.

Regarding the investment of reserves, about 85% of the surplus
funds would be placed on certificate of deposits, bonds and fixed
deposits at short to long-term fixed rates in order to ensure a
relatively stable interest income. The certificate of deposits and
bonds will be held to maturity, while the remaining 15% of the
surplus funds were invested in listed shares and the Tracker Fund
for dividend income and long-term investment purposes.

In June 2022, the Board submitted its annual report in 2021 for
tabling in the Legislative Council. The Estimates of Income and
Expenditure together with the Yearly Programme for 2023 were
also submitted in December 2022 for approval by the Government
in accordance with the provision of the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance (PMCO).

As the authorised paying agent of the Pneumoconiosis Ex Gratia
Fund (“the Fund”), the Board presented the Fund'’s interim and
final reports together with the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 which were audited by the Director of Audit
and approved by the Government.

Throughout the year, the Board faced a lot of challenges arising
from the epidemic and volatility of the financial markets. The
Committee would like to thank Members for their extra efforts and
contributions in continuous monitoring the finance, administration
and investment affairs of the Board.
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION

HFRRIBIEEEE

The overall levy income in 2022 was increased by 8.28% to
$395.38 million. The private sector had an increase of 5.14%
to $184.44 million (2021: $175.43 million). The public sector
had an increase of 11.26% to $210.71 million versus $189.38
million in the previous year.

The Board recorded $12.22 million of levy income from MTR
projects, indicated a 29.45% rise from the previous year of $9.44
million. With only one quarry site operating in Hong Kong, the levy
income from quarry industry decreased from $0.33 million to $0.23
million.

The construction projects at Kai Tak Development and the Airport
Development scheme contributed levy income of $35.08 million,
a decrease of $1.58 million from $36.66 million in 2021,
representing a drop of 4.31%. Levy income from projects in the
West Kowloon Cultural District decreased from $3.35 million to
$1.81 million, representing a decrease of 45.97%.

The number of new cases recorded in 2022 was 103, including
79 Silicosis, 21 Mesothelioma and 3 Asbestosis cases. The
number of patients receiving monthly compensation at year end
decreased from 1 412 in 2021 to 1 395 in 2022.

The total expenditure of compensation was $220.52 million,
representing a decrease of 2.63% as compared with $226.47
million in 2021.

In 2022, five compensation items were paid at revised levels
following the resolution passed at the Legislative Council on 17
March 2021. They included the amount of Monthly Compensation
for Pain, Suffering and Loss of Amenities at $5,660, the amount
of Compensation for Bereavement and the minimum compensation
for death at $233,440, the maximum amount of Funeral Expenses
at $92,670 and the amount of Monthly Compensation for Care
and Attention at $5,750.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION

The Board conducted a survey on patients’ level of satisfaction on
the Compensation Services. The average score with “satisfied” or
“very satisfied” given by patients was 96.8 out of the total score of
100.

Lastly, sincere thanks were given to all the Committee members for
their contributions in the areas of Levy and Compensation.
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH

MAEES

The Committee on Research is committed to financing and
working closely with academics and industries’ stakeholders for
conducting promising and practical projects. Working towards this
target, the Committee had another fruitful year in 2022, and the
following table summarises our work. The total expenditure spent
on research in 2022 was $3.88 million, showing an increase of
about $0.66 million as compared with 2021.

MEZEG —ERNBERBRAREBEMERS
NEBRTAE ETSBEABENNEREE
WATRIER - EETMER - ZEERN2022
FRES —HERNFR  UWTEREEERE
EERFNREIE - EFEANMARHNMAHE
=ANTNAET - L2021 ML TARET

Types of project Number HBEA A
New projects approved 3 FTERMBRIER 3
New projects declined 4 SR ERERE 4
Projects completed 1 SERKIEE 1
Projects in progress 8 HEITPIEE 8

In order to fund the topmost projects so as to bring the highest
values to our patients and stakeholders, the Committee adopts
a rigorous and meticulous approach in vetting proposals. The
Committee approved a variety of three projects with different
focuses this year. Among these projects, one targeted on
developing a better diagnostic tool for pneumoconiosis and two
focused on mesothelioma treatment from different angles.

This year, the Committee supported a project titled “Artificial
intelligence (Al)-enhanced pneumoconiosis screening and staging
from chest radiographs” conducted by Dr Chen Hao from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. At present,
chest radiographs are the main diagnostic imaging technique for
pneumoconiosis diagnosis; yet, diagnosis is sometimes delayed
because of the huge demand for examinations. To accelerate the
diagnostic procedures, this study aims for developing a novel
Al-enhanced automatic system for screening and staging. The
Board started to launch a Medical Surveillance Programme in
2011 for encouraging construction workers to receive regular
chest examinations. If a reliable screening and staging system is
developed, we can incorporate this not only in clinical diagnosis
in hospitals but also into our surveillance programme so that
workers with silica and/or asbestos exposure can receive regular
examinations for possible early detection of pneumoconiosis.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH

Although mesothelioma remains incurable, the Committee hopes
to improve our patients’ treatment methods. The Committee
decided to fund Dr Kwok Hoi Hin from the University of Hong Kong
(HKU) to conduct a project titled “CD24 and PD-1 co-inhibition
for treatment of malignant pleural mesothelioma”. In this study,
the researcher would reveal the mechanism of CD24-mediated
immunosuppressive effects in malignant pleural mesothelioma
(MPM) in in vitro and in vivo models, and evaluate the therapeutic
potential of CD24 and PD-1 co-inhibition in the MPM model. If
the project findings could reveal the role of CD24 in MPM, novel
therapeutic approaches may be designed and may uncover novel
treatment opportunities for MPM patients.

The approved project conducted by Dr Tan Zhi Wu from HKU,
titled “Preclinical study of PD1-based TWIST1 vaccination
approach - promoting its translation into clinical use”, focused
on developing a vaccine for mesothelioma immunotherapy. As
it was shown recently that sPD1-TWIST1 vaccine could induce
potent TWIST1-specific tumor-reactive cytotoxic T lymphocytes
for mesothelioma immunotherapy, Dr Tan proposed to establish
a new nanoparticle-mediated delivery of human PD1-TWIST1
DNA (huPD1-TWIST1) vaccine in mice. With positive preliminary
results showing the efficacy of the huPD1-TWIST1 vaccine for
mesothelioma immunotherapy, we hope the study could eventually
bring advancement in mesothelioma treatment.

In addition to the above, there were a total of eight projects in
progress and another one was completed during the year. Dr Lam
Sze Kwan from HKU completed his project titled “Inhibition of
Warburg effect with a novel combination of dichloroacetate and
niclosamide for therapy in malignant pleural mesothelioma”.
The study successfully demonstrated the anticancer effect of
dichloroacetate and niclosamide in vitro and in vivo, and revealed
that the effect was mediated by inhibition of the Warburg effect,
anti-proliferation, cell cycle arrest, apoptosis and/or other
pathways. Although these findings were preliminary, they certainly
provided a scientific foundation for the future design of clinical
trials of therapy in MPM.

For all the advancement brought by our research work, the
Committee would like to thank members for their professional
advice given in these years. The Committee will continue the
hard work on researches aiming to bring practical and significant
benefits to our patients as well as the other stakeholders.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION
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Though the rehabilitation services provided by the Board was
affected by the COVID-19 epidemic in the first quarter of 2022,
as the epidemic has been gradually eased, it is our pleasure
to report that all rehabilitation services provided by the Board
steadily returned to normal operation. Through the dedication of
the Committee in the year, the Board was able to maintain a well-
structured framework for providing diversified while tailor-made
services to the cohort of 1 395 pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma
patients.

Total expenditure spent on rehabilitation was $26.44 million in
2022, representing a decrease of $1.38 million compared with
2021, and this was mainly due to disturbance on rehabilitation
services by the epidemic outbreak in early 2022. The Committee
has been dedicated to upholding the commitment and devotion
to providing high-quality rehabilitation programmes to our
patients and caregivers. We are glad to share in this report these
programmes and their results during the year.

The Board continued to deliver rehabilitation services to all
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma patients in the territory
through Ruttonjee Hospital, Haven of Hope Hospital and North
District Hospital under the pulmonary rehabilitation programme in
cooperation with the Hospital Authority (HA programme). During
the year, 299 patients, who were frail and in need of rehabilitation
services, were referred to this programme. A total of 2 985 service
sessions have been provided to patients by the professional teams
composed of respiratory physicians, nurses, physiotherapists and
occupational therapists. The Committee is grateful to learn that
the responses of patients having received the services were mostly
positive.

Another group of patients with better physical conditions
continued to receive support and care through our Comprehensive
Community Rehabilitation (CCR) Programme. In spite of fewer
patients participating in the first quarter due to the epidemic,
participation rate returned to normal gradually in the second half
of the year. During the year, 69 patients (2021: 105) completed
the preliminary assessment in Adventist Hospital-Tsuen Wan,
and the accumulated numbers of patients having completed
Phase 2 and Phase 3 increased to 748 and 675 (2021: 658 and
469) respectively. In 2022, 306 patients (2021: 316) joined
the exercise sessions for at least one time, and a total of 14 502
(2021: 16 874) exercise sessions have been arranged for patients.
Although the monthly average exercise sessions per patient slightly
decreased to 5.78 in 2022 compared with 5.99 in 2021, the
number of patients participating in exercise sessions reached a
record high of 241 in December. Overall speaking, the Committee
is delighted to see that the CCR programme has received
overwhelming support from the patients, helping them develop
regular exercise habits and improve their health condition.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

Physical health is certainly important to our patients but
maintaining psychological and social health in the rehabilitation
process is equally crucial to them. Through a tendering process
in 2020, the Board commissioned a charitable institution to
provide social and psychological support services to patients
with psychological and social problems. During 2022, 218 cases
received a total of 1 468 home visits attended by professional
social workers, and eventually 520 referrals were made for patients
and/or their carers, providing them with appropriate support and
services. To effectively monitor the progress of patients and carers,
different assessment tools have been put in place. Service users
were required to complete these assessments every 6 months.
Patients’ assessment results this year were in general satisfactory.
For instance, among 160 patients who have completed the
assessments, 61% and 58% of them showed improvement in
Geriatric Depression Scale and Rasch Scale questionnaires
respectively, while 20% and 21% had ratings in the respective
scale reflecting that their depression and loneliness did not
worsen. Similarly, the majority of 93 carers receiving home visits
got positive or stable results in assessments. Patients will benefit if
the burden of their carers is alleviated. Social workers in the team
were able to establish strong rapport with patients and carers. They
have become a reliable source for seeking necessary assistance.

To reach out to more patients of different spectrums, the
Committee continued to fund other rehabilitation projects through
the sponsorship scheme. During the year, 30 sessions of online or
physical education talks and gatherings were arranged, with a total
of 319 attendance. Apart from learning useful information on the
management of the disease and development of a healthy lifestyle,
patients could also expand their social circles in these gatherings,
thereby developing mutual support among the group. Additionally,
the Board also sponsored service providers to organise music
therapy classes and a series of interest-based rehabilitation classes
such as “Acupressure Massage class”, “Healthy Diet Class” and
“Sleep Hygiene Class” to improve patients’ breathing techniques
and emotional well-being during the COVID-19 epidemic, and
offer them with diverse options of rehabilitation activities beyond
exercise.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

ERES88

To conclude, the Committee would like to express our heartfelt Hi& ZEEROBEHZTZENER LT
gratitude to our members for materialising all the above work. {E/GIBRI#ETT - & B S KEBATERMER
With the objective of striving for continuous improvement in & EIEERERE - BLREERRS KRN TR
the rehabilitation programmes, the Committee will continue to A% * BHEARKEEHNERRT -

enhance existing rehabilitation programmes and also explore new

initiatives to provide the best possible rehabilitation services to our

patients.

Patients joined an online health talk conducted by the Case Manager of the Board.
MAZHEARSZ S EARCIEFANH LIBRERE -
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

EERESE

Patients sang and clapped hands along with the instructor in a music therapy session.
RAE SR B IREE SR — eI AT -

Patients experienced low-impact kickboxing by learning the basic movement of the sport.

BAZRBBHENBZHE  BREEBHEEY -
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION

HhE&ES

The mascot “Dusty Boy” of the Board has successfully built a
positive and impressive image in various educational and publicity
programmes. In 2022, the Committee continued to adopt a vivid
approach to promote educational and publicity work with a view to
raising the awareness of the stakeholders of construction industry
as well as the general public on preventing pneumoconiosis and
mesothelioma.

The Committee is committed to conducting and financing
education and publicity programmes to promote the prevention
of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma as in the past. Since
the society gradually resumed to normalcy from the COVID-19
epidemic, the Committee launched several prevention programmes
during the year. The total expenditure spent on prevention in 2022
was $29.29 million, showing an increase of $6.24 million when
compared with $23.05 million spent in 2021.

In order to encourage more small and medium-sized enterprises
engaged in the construction, renovation and maintenance works
industries to use tools with dust collectors, the Board continued
with the “Cordless Tools with Dust Removal System Subsidy
Scheme” in 2022. Eligible companies would receive subsidies
to purchase suitable cordless angle grinders with dust collectors.
It is hoped that this will help employers and workers understand
the importance of “dust reduction at source” in preventing
pneumoconiosis, and by using the dust reduction tools, their work
habits and environment could also be improved.

To achieve synergies, we continued to jointly organise the
“Occupational Health Award” with the Occupational Safety &
Health Council, the Labour Department, the Department of Health
and the Occupational Deafness Compensation Board. During the
assessment process, we were pleased to see that the construction
industry had adopted a number of innovative construction methods
and technologies to improve the effectiveness of dust prevention,
and thus safeguarding the occupational health of workers. Special
thanks were given to the participating organisations for their
contributions to the prevention of pneumoconiosis. As long as
we join hands together, we are confident that a higher level of
occupational safety and health in the construction industry can be
promoted, resulting in a better working environment for workers.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION

The Board also sponsored trade unions and non-government
organisations to organise prevention programmes of different
types and scales, including talks related to the prevention of
pneumoconiosis at construction sites, promotion booths and
seminars for residents living in old districts about prevention
of asbestosis as well as other promotional activities targeted at
people of different races. In 2022, promotional materials including
posters, leaflets, stickers and site hoarding banners with prevention
messages were distributed to 152 construction sites through the
“Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Site Beautification Campaign
and Promotional Toolbox Program”, thereby assisting contractors
publicise to workers more effectively the proper pneumoconiosis
and mesothelioma preventive measures at their sites and remind
workers to take preventive measures all the time. It is believed that
by working together with different stakeholders, the prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma messages can be delivered in a
wider and deeper way.

Apart from organising various types of activities, the Committee
also launched promotion programmes in different media and
through various publicity channels this year. The “Dusty Boy”
has been meeting the public on TVB, Cable TV, Now TV, ViuTV,
MTR stations, bus stations, Facebook, etc. Additionally, the radio
announcements from “Dusty Boy” were also broadcasted during
the horse racing and financial programmes of Commercial Radio |
and Metro Radio.

As for occupational health, a total of 5 074 construction workers
benefited from the “Medical Surveillance Programme” in 2022,
showing a significant increase of 1 585 construction workers as
compared with 2021. By taking regular physical examinations, not
only could construction workers detect chest-related problems and
receive suitable treatments as early as possible, but they could
also have a higher alert on occupational health and strengthen
preventive measures of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma in their
daily work.

Finally, the Committee would like to extend our heartfelt
appreciation to all the stakeholders, who have dedicated
themselves to fostering occupational health and safety culture
in the construction industry, especially on the prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma during the year. A note of
gratitude is also extended to our members whose tireless efforts
have facilitated the launching of various programmes. With the
concerted efforts of all of us, we firmly believe that the industry’s
concern about pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma will be further
enhanced.
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
HhE8e

Dusty Boy bus body advertisement to promote dust prevention and reduction.

PEFELESEREEEHERERS

Dusty Boy bus station advertisement to promote dust
prevention and reduction.

PEFELEUEREEEHEREMS
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
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The Board television advertisement reminded workers to take proper dust control measures on the construction site.

E¢Z e ERESIRE T R T MEEZESEE -

The Board Chairman, Sr Lam Kin Wing, Eddie
(left), presented prizes to the representative of
the winning company in “The 23rd Construction
Safety Award Forum and Award Presentation
Ceremony”.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RV R ST S

To the members of Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board
(Established in Hong Kong under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”) set out on pages 26 to
69, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in funds and reserves and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Board as at 31 December 2022,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Board in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Board members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control
as the Board members determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are
responsible for assessing the Board’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board members either intend to liquidate the Board or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RV R ST S

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board members.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Board’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2023
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FhlaE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note
BRE

REVENUE WA

Levy income EENON 4

OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/(LOSS) Htht AR Uz~ (&8)

Bank interest income RATHBUA

Interest income on debt investments IZEHK AT £ 2 EHIRE 2
at amortised cost FEMA

Dividend income from listed A LMESHEREWRA
securities

Ex-gratia fund administration charge RERFEES AW ITEE R
received

Penalty on late payments of levies — EREZEFATIELZ S15K

Sundry income FIEWA

Fair value loss on financial assets  ZAREEFABRIEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ~ ZRAAEEEE

EXPENDITURE *

Operating and administrative BB RITH X
expenditures
Pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma fibEEIRIN & A I M7 B (8

compensations

Project expenses I
Employee benefit expenses 8 B Hrh e rE M) 2 5
Administrative expenses THRAX 6
Medical examination fees HIGEMH 7
Depreciation e 9
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEERE 10
Capital expenditure BARRY

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR FERMH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hft2mEK#

ITEM THAT WILL NOT BE BrEHEH I EEBEZEA
RECLARIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS

Net fair value (loss)/gain on equity
investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive

income (non-recycling)

BERARBEFALLEZE
Yak GEEIR) < BRAKREZ
DABEER), W FHE

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z2&Z2HWHAHE
FOR THE YEAR

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial
statements.
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2022

395,377,581

29,598,454

565,000

15,948,103

130,454

398,494

171
(28,940,150)

17,700,526

(220,517,837)
(59,606,621)
(18,927,277)

(2,522,483)
(4,935,905)
(811,233)
(231,533)
(564,770)

(308,117,659)

104,960,448

(6,342,238)

98,618,210

HZE2022F 12 31 HIEFEUABTIIR)

2021

365,137,228

17,231,436
378,137
14,549,203
138,429
224,425
3,734
(44,179,620)

(11,654,256)

(226,473,545)
(54,083,072)
(18,286,080)

(2,456,151)
(6,498,730)
(705,518)
(223,833)
(745,725)

(309,472,654)

44,010,318

9,235,309

53,245,627

$£31E69 B Mt RZEMBEIME 2 EKES -



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Bl F5 AR =

At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 72022412 831 B UAETHIR)

Note
P EE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - MBS N R 9
Intangible assets B EE 10
Debt investments at amortised cost IZE KA E 2 BEIFIRE 11
Equity investments designated at BEEAABEALMEE

fair value through other s 2 AR E

comprehensive income 12
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABEZEHEE

through profit or loss 13
Time deposits with original maturity REfE—F&IIE 2 THFR

of more than one year 15
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Accounts receivable FE UG BR X 14
Interest receivables JFEHFI 2
Prepayments and deposits BRRIERES
Advance payment for compensation FEXF{ES
Time deposits with original maturity RER:B=EAEZNH>

of more than three months TEHITER 15
Cash and cash equivalents EeNIESZEEY 16
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS MENEELE
CURRENT LIABILITY REAE
Accruals and other payables JEETERIE K HoAth FE - 5018 17
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERABERE

LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBAE
Provision for long service payments £ HIfRF S BfE 18
Net assets BEFE

2022

20,668,824
298,931
100,000,000

187,970,572
312,973,080
357,794,356
979,705,763
15,491,485
25,253,059
72,673

125,088

2,077,248,613
12,220,847

2,130,411,765

18,115,671

2,112,296,094

3,092,001,857

115,015

3,091,886,842

2021

21,246,964
453,464
100,000,000

149,081,411
267,810,480
457,794,356
996,386,675
16,739,402
5,177,139
89,924

72,468

1,947,325,117
37,942,609

2,007,346,659

10,357,801

1,996,988,858

2,993,375,5633

106,901

2,993,268,632

MERIEFRBEESEEE 2022FF R
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Bl F5 AR =

At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 72022412 A31 B UAETHIR)

Note 2022

MIsE $
FUNDS AND RESERVES He RS
Accumulated fund 2EES® 19 3,048,138,478
Research fund HEES 19 8,663,198
Prevention fund Bl EE 19 9,085,059
Rehabilitation fund ERES 19 913,829
Computer systems fund BREHES 19 298,931
Capital reserve B 19 20,668,824
Investment reserve ARG 19 4,118,523
Total funds and reserves HE N EEeR 3,091,886,842
Sr LAM Kin Wing, Eddie RSB 2 AR
Chairman FE

2021

2,931,279,548
10,541,774
18,372,292
913,829
453,464
21,246,964
10,460,761

2,993,268,632

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial 231Z698 2 AZEMBEIRE ZHEED -

statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES
BERGERESHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE20224 12 A31 B IFFE (LABTYIR)

Balance at 1 January 2021

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

Balance at 31 December 2021 and at
1 January 2022

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

Balance at 31 December 2022

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial

statements.

R2021F 181848

Hitt 2 H W
BARBEFAEMEANEZEREEZ AR
EBEKREFE

R2021F 12 A31 AR 2022F 1 A 1 H&#R
EFERR
Hitp2EW S

BAnBEFAEMEZANEZEREESZ
ARBEERFE

2022512 A 31 H#ERR

Funds and
reserves
HEERF#E
$

2,940,023,005

44,010,318

9,235,309

2,993,268,632

104,960,448

(6,342,238)

3,091,886,842

£31E69 B 2 MERZEMEIMER ZEE D

MERNEFHBEESZESE 2022FFH

29



30

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
REREE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note
BRE
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING #EZEHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations BEEECReREETDHRS
and net cash flows generated from G&E/558
operating activities 20(a)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEITHHRSRE

ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from redemption of debt  EEIREEK A E 2 ERKIRE

investments at amortised cost Z PSS RIE
Purchase of equity investments BAETERAABER AH M
designated at fair value through 2EWE 2 RAIEE

other comprehensive income
Purchases of debt investments at IBARBEN AT EZEBIRE
amortised cost 11
Purchases of financial assets at BALAABEFABRZZ
fair value through profit or loss ERVEE
Purchases of items of property, BAME MERKEES
plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets BARTEE
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits REiB:@m=1EA %5 |H 7 FTH
with original maturity of more than 7Fz (3€n)/ F
three months
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits [RiE 88— F1% 5 H 2 & HA
with original maturity of more than R4 / (#&h0)
one year
Interest received

Dividends received

U ERRILE,
UER BB

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

BRERBFARSMEFE

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBEESENFRD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REMIzBRE&RESSEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RF# 2R RELESEY
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH HeRBSZSEUWEHIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances BE RIBITHRSS 16

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial
statements.
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2022

97,810,339

(45,231,399)

(74,102,750)
(233,093)
(77,000)

(129,923,496)

100,000,000
10,087,534
15,948,103

(123,532,101)

(25,721,762)

37,942,609

12,220,847

12,220,847

HZE2022F 12 31 HIEFEUABTIIR)

2021

58,797,889

15,000,000

(100,000,000)

(769,910)

435,948,463

(457,794,356)
29,299,872
13,977,676

(64,338,255)

(5,540,366)

43,482,975

37,942,609

37,942,609

E31E69 8 M RZFMEIHRR 2AKED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”)
is established with a role as a compensation body, and to
engage in the areas of rehabilitation, prevention and research
in respect of pneumoconiosis. The address of its registered
office is 15/F Nam Wo Hong Building, 148 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

With the enactment of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
(Amendment) Ordinance 1993 (the “Ordinance”) on 9 July
1993, all those pneumoconiotics who were compensated
by the Board between 1 January 1981 and 8 July
1993 can make an application to the Board to receive
further compensation and other payments under the new
compensation scheme. After re-assessment is made by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board and approval granted, the
applicant will receive monthly payments of compensation in
respect of the difference between the degree of incapacity
determined by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board on the
re-assessment and the degree of permanent incapacity
previously determined by the Board under the Ordinance
prior to its amendment.

From 9 July 1993 onwards, persons suffering from
pneumoconiosis receive monthly payments of compensation
instead of a lump-sum compensation. The Board’s liability
to compensation arises when an applicant is assessed
by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be suffering
from pneumoconiosis and a certificate is issued by the
Commissioner for Labour of the applicant’s fulfilment of the
residency requirement.

On 18 April 2008, the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance was amended to include provisions to provide
compensation to persons suffering from mesothelioma.
Accordingly, the name of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance has been renamed as the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance. Applicants who
are assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to
be suffering from mesothelioma are subject to the same
eligibility criteria and payment of compensation as applicants
suffering from pneumoconiosis.

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7TFI7R)

ERTERHEESZEG(UATHRENE
SEEE 2K TEAEAM@MER
MERZ AEEHER2EBMZR 2 ERE
MRS TIE - BR8P ERT
bt B E S ERKEE 1485 MITKR
E15%8 -

(1993 P EERITLE % (1 {E) (ERT) 1B
AT RRaT 5P D 1993F7 A9 R AR -
Pl BAFT B R 19814 1 A1 H £1993
F7TASHHHERKEESZBEMEZN
BRNERBE  HURESZEGRFENM
AFBERTE - BERIAME - NMERIHE
BERHAGZESERHEREME &
HRASRERNEH 2 R TIFENERE
BRBAERT B Z ARV H 2 K A TR THFRE
NiEEMEZEE SHEBANGZHER
o

B 199347 9B - B LIMERTERD
ZALTAEAREEE - IR
B - RIBGD KMERIERAGEZES
HIFE R BRI B PRI S T RR R R 3
BEERREAFERINEBFIREZH
A TTEERESZESIHIE -

200844 A 188  (HEEZRTE R (F{E)
IEBHIVER BN - BRIRBEE WA RE
1EBIERE ZRBA o (BRI E R (FE)
6191 )4 T8 T AR B BB ok A P ER 3R T & 9 I
B (1) 1&5]) - ERERNERHAGEE
EgHTB LMERBRZEA - HRFEER
B2 IGER A EmERR L MR E
mEETEHER -

MERIEFRBEESEEE 2022FF R
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On 1 September 2008, the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance was further
amended to allow patients with pneumoconiosis or
mesothelioma to seek treatment from registered Chinese
medicine practitioners and claim reimbursement of the
medical expenses and cost of medicines for the treatment of
pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma, subject to the maximum
amount of claims as prescribed in the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except for
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, are stated at fair value as explained
in the respective accounting policies (see note 12 and 13
respectively). These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Board’s functional
currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 3.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)
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The Board has adopted the amendments to HKFRSs issued
by HKICPA to these financial statements for the current
accounting period, which are applicable to the Board. The
adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

financial effect on these financial statements.

The Board has not early applied any of the new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for
the accounting year ended 31 December 2022 in these
financial statements. Among these HKFRSs, the following are
expected to be relevant to the Board’s financial statements

upon becoming effective:
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Insurance contracts!

Disclosure of accounting
policies!

Definition of accounting
estimates!

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction'

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?®3

Non-current liabilities with
covenants?

Lease liability in a sale and
lesaeback?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7TFI7R)

HEZBENAGTFEMBRETRNE
ARESZ B ZMBEAGTHASEMZ
BRI B BMFRERED - RMEIEFTE B
BREENHEPBRRIBESAM B
@,
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E 175
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FE1IRZERT
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E 8/ ZIERT

ARG EA HELHE-—X5Z
F 1257 ZERT BEREERBZ
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1SR ZAERT FEmE) e

B ERER L i)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

8 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

The Board is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
the Board'’s results of operations and financial position.

Fair value measurement

The Board measures its equity investments and investment
funds at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Board. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Board determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7TFI7R)
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the assets recoverable amount is estimated.
An assets recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Board if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Board;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Board; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Board or of a parent of the Board;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

(i)  the entity and the Board are members of the same
Board;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Board are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Board or an
entity related to the Board;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Board or to the parent of the Board.

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7TFI7R)
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Board recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

Properties 50 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 10 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Right-of-use asset
Leasehold land Over the shorter of

the lease terms and 50 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

I[tems may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The proceeds from selling any such items and
the related costs are recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Board assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

(i) As alessee

At the lease commencement date, the Board recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Board, are primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Board enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Board decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the
following types of right-of-use asset.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Board’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Board will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the principal portion of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

Financial assets

Accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financial
component or for which the Board has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financial
component are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. All
the other financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date when the Board commits to
purchase or sell the assets.

(a) Classification and measurement
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, subject to
impairment if the assets are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows where those contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or as financial assets at fair value though
other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Interest income for these
financial assets is included in finance income.

Equity investments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss unless, on initial recognition, the Board
has irrevocably elected to designate such investments
that are not held for trading as equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends of such investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Board’s right to receive payment
is established. Changes in the fair value of such
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are never recycled to profit or loss even
when the assets are sold.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

(LAETTIIR)

Impairment

The Board applies the expected credit loss model on
all the financial assets that are subject to impairment.
For accounts receivable without a significant financial
component, the Board applies the simplified approach
which requires impairment allowances to be measured
at lifetime expected credit losses.

For other financial assets, impairment allowances are
recognised under the general approach where expected
credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Board is required to provide for credit losses that
result from possible default events within the next 12
months. For those credit exposures where there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure
irrespective of the timing of the default.

The Board considers a default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Board has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more appropriate default criterion
should be applied.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or
where the Board has transferred its contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial assets and has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership; or where control is not retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, they are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are

extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Board’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
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When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is recognised in profit or loss.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Board. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, if any. When a change

in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Income tax

The Board is exempted from Hong Kong profits tax under
Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Revenue recognition

Levy income, penalty on late payments of levies and ex-gratia
fund administration charge are recognised when the Board
becomes entitled to them and it is probable that they will be
received.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Board and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Board provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in the
following year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting
period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Board operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “MPF Scheme”) and a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for its employees.

Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme. The Board’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. The vesting percentage of the Board's
employer contributions is in accordance with the employees’
years of service when contributed into the ORSO Scheme.
Forfeited contributions in respect of employees who leave the
Board before their contributions fully vest are available to the
other employees in the ORSO Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme are
held separately from those of the Board in an independently
administered fund.
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The preparation of the Board’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Board’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification of debt investments at amortised cost

The Board follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments on classifying non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
at amortised cost. This classification requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Board determines
the appropriate business models and assesses the “solely
payments of principal and interest” requirements for financial
assets. The unlisted bonds and certificates of deposits were
classified as debt investments at amortised cost as the Board
has determined that the objective of holding the investments
is to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
The Board uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Board’s historical observed default rates.
The Board will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
construction sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Board’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Board’s accounts receivable is disclosed in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Provisions

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present
obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing and
amount of any outflows.
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Provisions for legal proceedings typically require a higher
degree of judgement than other types of provisions. When
matters are at an early stage, accounting judgements can be
difficult because of the high degree of uncertainty associated
with determining whether a present obligation exists, and
estimating the probability and amount of any outflows that
may arise. As matters progress, the Board members and legal
advisers evaluate on an ongoing basis whether provisions
should be recognised, revising previous judgements and
estimates as appropriate. At more advanced stages, it is
typically easier to make judgements and estimates around a
better defined set of possible outcomes. However, the amount
provided for can remain very sensitive to the assumptions
used. There could be a wide range of possible outcomes
for any pending legal proceedings. As a result, it is often
not practicable to quantify a range of possible outcomes for
individual matters. It is also not practicable to meaningfully
quantify ranges of potential outcomes in aggregate for
these types of provisions because of the diverse nature
and circumstances of such matters and the wide range of
uncertainties involved.

Private sector AL

Public sector NHTRE
Mass Transit Railway TR
Port and Airport Development Scheme B0 k452 Rt &
West Kowloon Cultural District mhEEE
Others Efth

Quarry industry ATEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the provision of Section 35 and
schedule 5 in Part VII of the amended Pneumoconiosis
and Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance, the levy rate
was 0.25% on the value of (a) all construction operations
exceeding $1,000,000 undertaken in Hong Kong and the
tender for which was submitted on or after 18 June 2000
and (b) on all quarrying products produced in Hong Kong with
effect from 18 June 2000. Effective 20 August 2012, the
levy rate has been changed to 0.15% on the value of (a) all
construction operations exceeding $1,000,000 undertaken
in Hong Kong and the tender for which was submitted on
or after 20 August 2012 and (b) on all quarrying products
produced in Hong Kong with effect from 20 August 2012.
Effective 30 July 2018, the levy threshold on construction
operations increased from $1,000,000 to $3,000,000.

Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - s k2

Staff medical insurance B B BRI
Staff compensation insurance 1 8 B E R

Pension scheme contributions

(defined contribution schemes) =)
ORSO Scheme R INET B
MPF Scheme wiEeETEl

(Reversal of provision)/provision for
unutilised annual leave

No Board members received any fees or emoluments in
respect of their services rendered to the Board during the
year (2021: Nil).

RAEREFHEHER (FEY

REMFR(BEEL)/ BE

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7TFI7R)

IRIBEASET 2R B R R I R 8 (i
E)IEBIEVIES D 351E MM RSB TE -
B EH0.25% - BAN (a) T B EABE
FTME{ER B 1,000,000 7T 7 & e
MEIZEZ2000F6 A 18 B ABIER
F (b) % 20004 6 A 18 A R IAR EE B
K2 EBEAEER - B201248HA20H
B BRERAEE0.15%  HEAN (A
fEAE#TTMEE BB 1,000,000 7T 7 &
ETRE MEZEZR2012F8 208 8
IABIERZ ¢+ R (b) 201248 A 20 B & IA
BEEARRZMAREER - 520184
7R30H#  HEEIRZHREDH
1,000,000 7Ti2® £ 3,000,000 7T ©

2022 2021

$ $
17,718,914 17,073,879
285,191 195,807
25,600 26,677
588,600 577,066
340,183 335,324
(31,211) 77,327
18,927,277 18,286,080

BEESZEBZ8RANFEARESZ

8 &Rt 7 RIS U EUE AT BN 4 3k H 3R M
(20214 : &) -

MERIEFRBEESEEE 2022FF R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Auditor’s remuneration ZEEE 2
Audit services BIZRG
Other services H AR

Impairment of accounts receivable, net  fEUKEE 2B F5E (FisE 14)
(note 14)

Legal and professional fees REIEE S 43

Printing and stationery ENfRI K2 S 4%

Others A

Medical examination fees represent fees paid and payable
to the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in respect of medical examinations conducted by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board under Sections 23 and 23A
of the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance.

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Board is
exempted by virtue of Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

2022 2021

$ $

180,000 180,000
10,000 10,000
178,715 131,235
457,498 945,395
79,780 105,674
1,616,490 1,083,847
2,522,483 2,456,151

HNSE R AR IR I BRI & i Ml B2 (8
18) & BI)5E 23 R 23AMIE + B#US REM
N FEBEFRITREBT A BEMERTE R
HBEZBEMBEZHBER -

BERBFEN G ERE  REA/EER
BeREF BRI RP)Fe8EMmER L -



31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021 and at
1 January 2022:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated

depreciation
Additions

Depreciation provided during the year

At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated

depreciation

At 31 December 2022:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020 and at
1 January 2021:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated

depreciation
Additions

Depreciation provided during the year

At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated

depreciation

At 31 December 2021:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

Right-
of-use
asset Owned assets
EREEE BREE
Leasehold Leasehold Computer
Land  Properties improvements  equipment Total Total
HENE
RELH nE BRIR R L H
$ $ $ $ $ $
2022%12A31H
2021512 A318 k%
M202€1A18 :
A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 2,248,404 24,410,504 31,265,836
ZitHE (91,667) (3,922,121) (5,109,410)  (895,674) (9,927,205) (10,018,872)
REFE 6,763,665 13,130,569 — 1,352,730 14,483,299 21,246,964
R202251A18 1k
ZithE 6,763,665 13,130,569 — 1,352,730 14,483299 21,246,964
NE - — — 233,093 233,093 233,093
FEAEBNE (7971)  (341,054) — (462,208)  (803,262)  (811,233)
2022812 A318 1k
Zithe 6,755,694 12,789,515 — 1,123,615 13,913,130 20,668,824
720228124318 :
A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 2,481,497 24,643,597 31,498,929
Zithe (99,638) (4,263,175) (5,109,410) (1,357,882) (10,730,467) (10,830,105)
FEFE 6,755,694 12,789,515 — 1,123,615 13,913,130 20,668,824
2021%12A31H
72020812 A318 %
M202151 718 -
A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 1,478,494 23,640,594 30,495,926
ZithE (83,696) (3,581,067) (5,109,410) 539,181  (9,229,658) (9,313,354)
FEFE 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939,313 14,410,936 21,182,572
R2021E1 710 Mk
Z5tnE 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939,313 14,410,936 21,182,572
NE — — — 769,910 769,910 769,910
EERENE (7971)  (341,054) —  (356,493)  (697,547)  (705,518)
R2021F 124318 - 1k
Zithe 6,763,665 13,130,569 — 1,352,730 14,483,299 21,246,964
20215124318 -
A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 2,248,404 24,410,504 31,265,836
Zithe (91,667) (3,922,121) (5,109,410)  (895,674) (9,927,205 (10,018,872)
REFE 6,763,665 13,130,569 — 1,352,730 14,483,299 21,246,964
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated
amortisation
Additions

Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated
amortisation

At 31 December 2022:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated
amortisation
Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated
amortisation

At 31 December 2021:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

2022 12H31H

A20214 12 A31 H &M 202241 A1H -
DN

REHEH
AREFE

MN20229F1 818 @ IR 25t

NE

FIE R

2022412 A31 B » kxRt

72022412 A31 8
Rt

FRERE

2021%12H31H

R20204 12 A31 ARMN2021 1 A1R -
DN

2T

REHE

R2021F1A18 - Mk RE#EH
FrER

2021412 A31 B » kxRt

2021412318
DN
Rt A

FRERE

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

Computer
software
EfEIS

$

1,119,166
(665,702)

453,464

453,464
77,000

(231,533)

298,931

1,196,166
(897,235)

298,931

1,119,166
(441,869)

677,297

677,297
(223,833)

453,464
1,119,166

(665,702)

453,464



11 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

12

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Debt investments at amortised cost,
at nominal value
— Unlisted bond

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Board’s unlisted
bond investment was with a fixed interest rate of 0.565% per

annum and will mature in August 2024.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Listed equity investments, at fair value: FHIEAIKRE  IAREBE

Hong Kong

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Board
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

HEER AT B2 EBRIRE

— FEMES

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

11 REBERATTEZEBRIRE

2022 2021
$ $
100,000,000 100,000,000

MN2022%F K% 20214 12H31H  £%
ZEEVILIMEFREBRTFFNER
0.565% K EIEAH A 20248 A

EERAABENARMEE

Wz BRARE
2022 2021
$ $
187,970,572 149,081,411

BB ARE S T REMIEE /IR AAE
Bt AR EEKE  RERESZE
RAEEREBREIEE -

“©z7
=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al 5 ¥k 2% Biil 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Details of the Board's equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income are as follows:

Fair value
as at
31 December

Name of company Stock code 2022
R2022F
12A31H

ARER RS ZARERE

$

CK Hutchison Holdings Ltd. ~ &IRLEEARAT 1 27,125,588

CLP Holdings Ltd. EERAERAT 2 19,636,360

Hong Kong and China AARERRARDNA

Gas Co. Ltd. 3 10,383,021

HSBC Holdings plc ELERERAR 5 36,451,340

Power Assets Holdings Ltd. BREXERLA) 6 10,602,000

Hang Seng Bank Ltd. BERITERAR 11 23,532,740

Sun Hung Kai Properties Ltd. ~ ¥TBEMEZREBR DA 16 32,467,200

CK Asset Holdings Ltd. RIBXEBEERAR 1113 27,772,323

187,970,572

13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 13
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed fund investments, at fair value: TTHESEE  BAREE

Hong Kong BB

The above investments were classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as the Board has not
elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other
comprehensive income.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

A ZESRTERANBEMARMLZEK
BZBEARREZFFEWAT

Dividend Dividend
income for income for
the year Fair value the year
ended as at ended

31 December 31 December 31 December

2022 2021 2021
#BZ2022F BZE2021F
12A31R #2021 % 12A318
LEE 12A31H 135
ZBREBA ZAREE ZBREBA
$ $ $

1,144,768 21,326,597 1,059,970

831,760 19,593,000 771,280
357,815 12,411,074 918,145
1,166,617 25,832,520 942,105
509,010 8,772,300 509,010
553,470 19,021,910 813,130
1,406,050 21,285,000 1,113,750
941,253 20,839,010 792,858

6,910,743 149,081,411 6,920,248

?é’&ﬁ%’ﬁ%f)\?ﬁﬁ?&z%%ﬁiﬁ

H

2022 2021
$ $

312,973,080 267,810,480

LRBEEEDERBRANEBEFAREZS
BEE  REASESZEWREENEM
2EREERAAEBEKEKER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

Accounts receivable
Less: provision for loss allowance

&M BR K
B ERRE

The credit period is 30 days. The Board seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
developed credit control policy to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Board does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

At 1 January
Impairment losses, net (note 6)

W1A1H

A ETRFEE (3E6)
At 31 December M12A31H

The Board measures loss allowances for accounts receivable
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. The Board measures loss allowance
on financial assets based on the past loss experience, existing

market conditions as well as forward-looking information at
the end of each reporting period.

2022 2021

$ $
17,681,170 18,750,372
(2,189,685) (2,010,970)
15,491,485 16,739,402

EEHR3I0X - E2Z 8 GBI EBRIEES
HORERUGE - 0 HIEEEEHEEIA
BEERBRBRERE - SRERESTHE
Bliailists - R R B W ERZFHEHT
BEMER R EMINREEEE - B
HEEHE o

FEMRFORE 2 B R R EFMT

2022 2021

$ $
2,010,970 1,879,735
178,715 131,235
2,189,685 2,010,970

E2ZBeRASER 2B EEBE (R
RBEREEFTE) 2 2B ERBRRZE
BEE - REREHR  EeZEEREA
EERLR  BAmRALABLEENTES
BMEEZEEEE -

MERNEFHBEESZESE 2022FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk TXEIF AR EEBESLESZESREK
exposure on the Board’s accounts receivable using a provision R FTHER . EERRER
matrix:
As at 31 December 2022 MR2022F 12 A31 H
Past due
B
Less than 3 months Over
Current 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
BE DR3EA 3@AELEF 1§ E st
Expected credit loss rate TEEHEEEIER 0.02% 0.2% 15.9% 100.0% 12.4%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) 4BBEE@E (5T) 14,476,546 788,882 274535 2,141,207 17,681,170
Expected credit losses (HK$) FEER{=E 518 (T) 3,534 1,380 43,564 2,141,207 2,189,685
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F 12 A31 H
Past due
B
Less than 3 months Over
Current 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
BE PR3 EA 3@AELEF 1FEE st
Expected credit loss rate JEHEEEIE R 0.03% 0.2% 40.6% 100.0% 10.7%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) 4@BEE@E (5T) 16,272,809 412,304 100,303 1,964,956 18,750,372
Expected credit losses (HK$) FaER{=E 518 (& T) 4,284 1,006 40,724 1,964,956 2,010,970
At the end of the reporting period, the Board had certain REBERR EeZ8866TREESTF
concentrations of credit risk as 11% (2021: 6%) and 34% Efs - RARESZESRKERZ11%
(2021: 28%) of the Board's accounts receivable were due (20214 : 6%) [ 34% (20214 : 28%)
from the Board’s largest debtor and five largest debtors, HRREREEZEG ZHENEBARAR
respectively. BEHA o

56  Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

2022 2021
$ $
Time deposits with original maturity of  REB:E=188 &k —F145|H
more than three months and one year 7 FERTERR 2,435,042,969 2,405,119,473
Less: Portion classified as non-current R DA ERBEE
assets (357,794,356) (457,794,356)
Current portion mENER S 2,077,248,613 1,947,325,117
As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate on time R2022F12A31H RE@® =18 A
deposits with original maturity of more than three months R—F@INHERFERCERFENER
and one year was 1.22% (2021: 0.6%) per annum. These 1.22% (20214 : 0.6%) ° ZEF R 2 F
deposits have an average maturity of 273 days (2021: 343 HEIEH £ 273 K (2021 F : 343K) °
days).
2022 2021
$ $
Cash and bank balances e RIRITAS B 12,220,847 37,942,609
Time deposits FHITERR 2,435,042,969 2,405,119,473
2,447,263,816 2,443,062,082
Less: Time deposits with original B REBA=EAKR—F%
maturity of more than three FIHA 2 E HRTE R
months and one year (note 15) (fzE15) (2,435,042,969) (2,405,119,473)
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 12,220,847 37,942,609
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Accruals FEFtRIA
Other payables HAb fER A
Provision for unutilised annual leave RAE B E R EHE
Provision for litigation claim AR ZR 2 B

Provision for litigation claim was made for a court case which
was outstanding at the end of the reporting period. The
provision of $1,218,136 refers to the maximum estimated
amount of legal costs to be borne by the Board as initially
provided by the legal advisor.

At 1 January N1A18
Movement during the year ENE
At 31 December MW12A31 8

The provision for long service payments is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which have been
earned by the Board’s employees from their service to the
Board to the end of the reporting period less any amount that
would be expected to be met by the vested benefits in the
retirement benefit scheme at the end of the reporting period.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

2022 2021

$ $
16,099,363 5,693,913
6,884 3,794
791,288 830,613
1,218,136 3,829,481
18,115,671 10,357,801

RAARRZ BB R — RN R E R KA
IREVEFAAZEMHEL - B8 1,218,136 75
mESZ B XARERNLET BB EARK
AZREHEH -

2022 2021

$ $
106,901 107,211
8,114 (310)
115,015 106,901

EERGEBEIREHESZESEER
EREHRAEAZ ST SRHRBEMD
FRER 2 T 88 SR AN R O TR I S 5 AR
RIKRMEEFREENIN 2 EM )
R 2 A ESS -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at
TLAIR)

Arf 55 ¥ 2% P

7

(A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

60

Notes: MiEE

(@) Research fund (@ WRES
A research fund has been set aside to finance ongoing BUOHRES AEBETR ZMEIER -
research projects.

(b) Prevention fund (b) TFEFRES
A prevention fund has been set aside to finance education BEERESUENHEREFEED B
and publicity programs aiming at reminding workers and ERETIRMHERABZEARER - L5
their families to the occupational hazard, and stressing the SAERERTE e EEM -
importance of prevention.

(c) Rehabilitation fund () #HEES
A rehabilitation fund has been set aside to finance BHERESUEEREY  BEAR
rehabilitation programs which provide holistic rehabilitation e NTERRRE -
care to patients.

(d) Computer systems fund (d EBER#FES
A computer systems fund has been set aside to finance BHERASRESAEDBREERSR -
development for various systems.

(e) Capital reserve (e) EBEXRRHAE
A capital reserve has been set aside to finance the acquisition BHEAFEERBEDSE  #ERF
of property, plant and equipment and depreciation charged is Z2E®  WBFEZARBERARER
compensated by a transfer from this reserve each year. ERYE -

(f)  Investment reserve f RERE

Investment reserve represents the accumulated net change
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

RERBREAABEN ARG ZERE
ZERMAEZ REAAEELEFE -



(a) Reconciliation of surplus for the year to

cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of discounts of debt
investments at amortised costs

Impairment of accounts receivable

Interest income
Dividend income

Fair value loss on equity
investments at fair value through

profit or loss, net

Decrease/(increase) in accounts

receivable

FERH
FLTFIRB (FH AR

e

A Y

R HEN AT E 2
BSIRE 2 I8

YRR SRR B

%U%MU\

BUA
Tﬁ@)bﬁ{ﬁu‘l’)\?E#
ZRAEZE 7 AR
BEEEFE

PR BRSO A (3En)

Decrease in prepayments and deposits Fa{+4 208 K& i% 4 50

Increase in advance payment for

compensation

Increase in accruals and other

payables

Increase/(decrease) in provision for
long service payments

Cash generated from operations

Major non-cash transaction

A E SN

&St R R R A

IR N

RHRBBHE
2o/ CRd)

BEEL RS

During the year, the Board received a scrip dividend of
Nil (2021: $571,527) from listed equity investments.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

(a) FERHKREZ
ZHER

Note 2022
M5 $
104,960,448

9 811,233

10 231,533
14 178,715

(30,163,454)
(15,948,103)

28,940,150

89,010,522
1,069,202
17,251
(52,620)
7,757,870

8,114
97,810,339

(b) BAIFRERS

BEEZR®

2021

44,010,318

705,518
223,833

(3,591)
131,235

(17,609,573)

(14,549,203)

44,179,620

57,088,157

(692,202)
9,549

2,392,695

(310)

58,797,889

FR - ESZESRIUABRRES
(20214 : 571,527 7T) °

MERNEFHBEESZESE 2022FFH

61



62

At the end of the reporting period, the Board was contingently
liable for compensations payable on 20 (2021: 41) re-
assessment applications under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance which have not yet
been approved by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board. In the
opinion of the Board members, the financial effect of the re-
assessment applications cannot be reliably measured.

The financial assets of the Board comprise (i) financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which are categorised
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —
mandatorily designated as such; (ii) equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which are categorised as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income; and (iii) accounts receivable,
interest receivables, deposits, debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and one year and cash and cash equivalents, which
are categorised as financial assets at amortised cost. The
carrying amount of deposits is $45,673 (2021: $64,143).
The carrying amounts of other financial assets are shown on
the statement of financial position.

The financial liability of the Board comprise financial
liabilities included in accruals and other payables categorised
as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The carrying amount
of financial liabilities included in accruals and other payables
is $16,106,247 (2021: $5,697,707).

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the Board’s financial assets and financial liability
approximated to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liability are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts
receivable, interest receivables, deposits, the current
portion of an unlisted bond included in debt investments
at amortised cost, the current portion of time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months and one year
and cash and cash equivalents approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair value of the non-current portion of time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and unlisted
bond included in debt investments at amortised cost has
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instrument with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of these
financial assets approximated to their fair values because the
effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of listed equity and fund investments are
based on quoted market prices.

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7TFI7R)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al 5 ¥k 2% Biil 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Board’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2022

Quoted prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
SEERT 5B
(F—#)
$
Equity investments designated #5E A AMEEGT AEM
at fair value through other PEREZBAEE
comprehensive income:
Listed equity investments TRAIRE 187,970,572
Financial assets at fair BAREEFABRZEREE
value through profit or loss 312,973,080
500,943,652

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

RIVEEREH

TRELESZEGZERTARREER

EER

BRANBEFECEE
2022412 H31H
Fair value measurement using

ERAUTBABBZAAEBENE

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
BEARAEE
WAHE

(=&
$

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3) Total
EXAFTAER
BWARE
(B=#) ey
$ $
— 187,970,572
— 312,973,080
— 500,943,652
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

As at 31 December 2021

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(LAETTIIR)

2021612 H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERAATRABBZAREETE

Quoted prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
ERT IS RE
(B—#%)
$
Equity investments designated & Al AR BETAEM
at fair value through other 2EREZBAERE
comprehensive income:
Listed equity investments EHRARE 149,081,411
Financial assets at fair BARBEFABRZEHEE
value through profit or loss 267,810,480
416,891,891

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2021: Nil).

Liabilities measured at fair value
The Board did not have any financial liability measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXRTUEBE BAFUEE
BWAEE BWARE

(B=#) (B=#8) @gt

$ $ $

— — 149,081,411

— — 267,810,480

— — 416,891,891

FHN - REeMEEMS F—REE_H

M EAEET2ER - JMEE Ak
F=H (20214 : #) -

BARBEMAEZAR

12022412 A31H K2021412 7314 -
A2 Z BV REARANBENEZHE
AafE -
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The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, equity and fund price risk and
interest rate risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Board is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable, debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and one
year and cash and bank balances.

The Board has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk arising from uncollected levy
income. The credit risk on debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and one year and cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are corporations and banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. Accordingly, the Board members are of the opinion
that the Board’s activities are not exposed to significant
credit risk.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Board’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed
in note 14 to the financial statements.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Board, which comprise interest receivables,
deposits, debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and one
year and cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of
the counterparty, the Board’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. These
financial assets of the Board are classified within stage 1 for
measurements of ECLs.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Board, through its
Committee on Finance and Administration, has adopted a
prudent investment and treasury strategy so as to ensure
that it maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Board’s financial liability as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was less than one year or repayable
on demand.

Equity and fund price risk

Equity and fund price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity and fund investments decrease as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and the value of underlying
individual securities. The Board is exposed to equity and
fund price risk arising from its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income (note 12)
and financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
(note 13) as at 31 December 2022. The Board’s listed equity
and fund investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchange and are valued at closing prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The market equity index for the Hong Kong stock exchange,
at the close of nearest business trading day of the end of the
reporting period, and its respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

31 December

2022 F
125 31H

Hong Kong — Hang Seng &% — (84188
Index

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

MEE SRR

EEZRBECRRERERFERMA S
KiRiTHE - RS EGCBBE TIHER
THZEGRMEBZRE MEHRE - A
BRERHREENERDESHTR -

RESNARFTEMNFINE 2 EE T EGRH
BERBREHR IR /DR —FHIE

ERMEE -

AR R E S B ERE

19,781

BARRESERERERARESREZA
AEERBRAEZKTE BB ERESER
HIR BT T Bz R o R20225 12 A
31A R ZECHRKREEERAAE
B AR EE RS2 AR E (FFE12)
MBEARBEFABSEZZHKE (ME
1) z2hAREZERRER - E2ZEEZ
EPBRARESRERBBH M LT - I
BRHRERRZ WHERE

ESZIIHRENRZR 5 HEERRERE
BRI BEET SRR EFAZRSE
NMEERMT

High/low 31 December  High/low
2022 2021 2021
2022 F 2021 % 20214
&/{& 128310 & /&
24,966/ 23,398 31,085/
14,863 22,745
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Arf 5 ¥k 2% Pid 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to changes
in the fair values of the equity and fund investments
assuming a 5% change in fair values of the underlying
instruments with all other variables held constant and before
any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis,
for the financial investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the

T%%ﬁﬁmﬂxﬁ)}%i&ﬁﬁfﬁ“ﬁﬁFﬁI/E\Z
Lfﬁ@ﬁfﬁﬁ% fBME MG EERR
FHRGFAEARBZEZITRT - R

EE@?&&%EHXZEEE@ HAREEESZ

BURE - LADITE - ERRABER

AHRfbEENE 2 SRIKE - ARZERS

RERNRBERBZYE -

fair value reserve.

2022 2022 F
Investments listed in REE 2 EHRE
Hong Kong:
Equity investments BERAABE AEM
designated at fair value PEWE 2 RAKE

through other
comprehensive income

Financial investments at fair A EEE AIEZEY

value through profit or loss SREMEE
2021 2021 4F
Investments listed in REBZ ETHRE
Hong Kong:
Equity investments EERRABET AHAM
designated at fair value 2ENE AR E

through other

comprehensive income
Financial investments at fair

value through profit or loss

BEARBERAERZZ
SRIEE

*

Excluding accumulated fund
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Carrying
amount of
investments
RE&E

REE

$

187,970,572

312,973,080

149,081,411

267,810,480

*

Change in
surplus for
the year
FREER
Z8H

$

15,648,654

13,390,524

Change in
funds and
reserves*

BEE KRR

9,398,529

7,454,071



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest rate risk

The Board is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets.
The value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Bank balances, including
time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and one year, earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates. Assuming the amount of bank
balances, including time deposits, outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year,
a 100 basis-point increase/decrease in interest rates at 31
December 2022 and 2021 would have increased/decreased
the Board’s surplus for the year by $24,472,638 and
$24,430,577, respectively. There is no impact on funds and
reserves except for accumulated fund.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Board’s capital management
is to safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient funding for future operations.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31

December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

Capital of the Board comprises its funds and reserves.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 26 June 2023.

Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7TFI7R)
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APPENDIX |
Bt £ —

Number of anfirmed New Cases in the Past Ten Years
BT FHEZHEREF

Total #8 8 *
795 (41) [139]

120

100
1

80

112
12 103
12 93 2
84
19 3
14
72 71 1
69 . 69 68 6
16 13 16 10 9
60 54 : 2 1
6
2 7
4
40
51 68 56 43 54 59 52 88 67 79
20
T :
0 & i )| i

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

. Silicosis cases . Asbestosis cases . Mesothelioma cases . Asbestosis & Mesothelioma case

WinmREz AfNERER B EER ARERRERBER
Average Percentage of cases having employment record in the construction/quarry industry
T ERZTEREXRABECIAFMGES T
84 87 85 90 91 83 83 84 86 76 78

Figures in parentheses () represents number of Asbestosis cases and figures in brackets [ ] represents number of Mesothelioma
cases included in the total.

ORBFREREHTORNEREEZAZ MIIAKFRREARCBPRELBBEZAL

*  One patient in 2019 and 2021 respectively were determined to be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma

O CE-NFRCIEC XA BERERESANBE LR ERRENE
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Analysis of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2022
TR CFRAERAEZHERNERREEBERS A

40-49 W+ZEMM+FpR
50-59 A+EA TN
60-69 ~TENT 5
70-79 ++E+ETNER
80 and above /\ 5 M E

Total

103

. Employed
R

. Unemployed/retired
REBRIK

Table 1: Age/Average Degree of Incapacity Analysis

Bl&— FETHERIIEENRERE

Age group Number of cases Average age Average DOI(%)
P A THERENTE

F i Bl BmAAE T3 F iR EagR

40-49 1 () [1] 43 10

M+ZE+ sk

50-59 8 (0) [2] 57 21

E+ER TN

60-69 57 (1) [8] 66 21

NTENRT R

70-79 31 (1) [7] 73 22

t+EETNBR

80 and above 6 (1) [3] 83 33

NTBE A E

Total 103 (3) [21] 68 22

#  Total number has included 5 fatal cases, the degree of incapacity of whom has not
been determined.

" RHBRSFAERERATIEENEEZILTES -

Table 2: Patients’ Employment Status at Time of First
Registration

Bx— MABRELRFHIHEEHR

Employment Status Number of cases Percentage
MEER HmANE RCNER RS
Employed 23 [4] 22.3
TR

Unemployed/retired 80 (3) [17] 77.7
KREBIRIK

Total 103  (3) [21] 100.0
B

Figures in parentheses ( ) represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ]
represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
ORNBFREREHEPARTEREEZAZ - M INBFRIAEREHPRLEESE
PN &
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Table 3: Employment History of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed
in 2022
Bxk= —T_FRNERHATZHERNERMERBEERT 2 TIELH

Length of employment

RBITERRE
Industry Below 10 years 10 years or above Total
BT TERT THEHULE wm
Construction Only 0 (0) 101 31 (0) [11 31 (0) [1]
RgE¥—18
Construction & Quarry 0 (0) 101 0 (0) 101 0 (0) 101
BEERAOBEE
Construction & Quarry and others 2 (1) [1] 47 (2) [5] 49 (3) [6]
B OEERHMITE
Sub-total 2 (1) [1] 78 (2) [6l] 80 3) I[71
EE/NF
Other industries
HiniT3
Ship manufacturing/sailoring 2 0) I[2] 3 0) [3] 5 (0) [5]
MERNE 1TH
Brick making/Marble grinding/Stone
crushing 0 (0) [0] 1 (0) [0] 1 (0) [0]
2 ERITE A
Jade/gem stone polishing 0 (0) 101 3 (0) [0] 3 (0) [0]
XA/EAME
Others 6 (0) [11 8 (0) I[8] 14 0) [9]
EAh
Sub-total 8 (0) I[31] 15 (0) [11] 23 (0) [14]
EE/NF
Total 10 (1) 1[4] 93 (2) [171] 103 (3) [21]
wme
Notes:

— Figures in parentheses () represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases
included in the total.

— Among the 103 cases under study, 80 (77.7%) have worked in the construction industry. 23 (22.3%) have had employment
connection with neither the construction nor quarry industry.

— ORNBTAEREHETFABNERBEZAS  MIIRRTUAEREHTEEBEEZAH -
— ME103BEBEP  80A(77.7%) BREHEZETIE - 23 A(22.3%) RN EZEXENABET(E -
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Analysis of Payments Made Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma

(Compensatlon) Ordinance as at 31 December 2022

S—=——

Table 1: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “Old case”

Pneumoconiosis Patients

—F+ZA=1T—-R(MERNERRERE (HE) KODBEHH

Blx— [BERI"RASZHESZEBARESESN
Degree of incapacity Total Average
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) of case(s) payment month per case
BHEHZRBATIHE BRAWEZE BSBABATY
BEIBERDE BmAAE X EBSzEESH
($) ($)

5-20 85 503,130 5,919
25-40 45 424,110 9,425
45-60 15 210,670 14,045
65-80 2 26,850 13,425
85-100 2 45,480 22,740
Total 149 1,210,240 8,122
e

@ 520

‘ 25-40 * “0ld case” includes those patients who have received a lump-sum compensation before

the ordinance amended in 1993.

® 4560 * [EER] R 1993 FEOUEHAR GEER [—FiB | HENRAME -

6580

@ 85-100 Table 2: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “New case”

Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Patients

BX— [FERI'BAKFESZEARBESEIN
Degree of incapacity Total Average of
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number of monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) case(s) payment month per case
BEEHZEAIHE BAWE SABATY
EHIERERSE mAAE BmEH EBSzWERE
%@gl 5-20 1011 8,645,190 8,651
1"346 25-40 140 2,157,370 15,410
45-60 54 1,155,480 21,398
65-80 35 961,000 27,457
85-100 6 183,550 30,592
Total 1246 13,102,590 10,516
@ 520 Ay
. 25-40 In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 11 cases at $5,750 per
‘ case per month.
45-60 B 11 ERATBNEMG AT T L AT T2 (2 RBEE O] -
. 65-80 #  “New case” includes those patients who have not received any lump-sum compensation before.
® 5100 tOTHHER] RICRER [ 2B | HENRARESR -

ERNEREEESZES 20220F®K 73
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Table 3: Summary of Compensation Paid Out Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma

(Compensation) Ordinance
Bx=

Compensation item

fHEIEE

Compensation for death resulting from
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (or both)
fib BB & ok IR 8 (B )

SIBL T E

Compensation for bereavement
BERT 2 BrFE

Monthly compensation for incapacity, pain,
suffering and loss of amenities

RIS « RE - B A REBNE AFE
Compensation for incapacity prior to date of diagnosis
FI1G A ERRT R K TYERE N MVARI(E

Compensation for care and attention

TR N R EE T A (E

Funeral expenses

BmE

Medical expenses

Expenses for medical appliances
EEKEER

Less: Reversal of provision

B BER

Total

B

(BRI E A KRB B (R E) RS 484

Expenses
incurred from
1 Jan to

31 Dec 2022
—— —

—_——

—R—B=%

+=A=+-H

ZX

($)

30,994,543

1,126,880

175,938,482

3,944,858

867,823

5,407,570

3,077,625

1,371,400

(2,211,344)

220,517,837

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2022

Expenses
incurred from
1 Janto

31 Dec 2021
—E—F
—RA—BA=%

+=A=+-8

ZXH

($)

33,669,630

2,101,230

174,956,777

3,871,963

984,907

6,506,873

3,067,606

1,314,559

226,473,545

Total Expenses

incurred from

9 Jul 1993 to

31 Dec 2022

—hAh=%F

tARAZE
—=E_-—

+=ZBA=+—H

X HBE

($)

558,343,791

19,135,996

3,748,680,591

58,325,840

19,421,436

80,278,757

43,644,623

27,524,522

(2,211,344)

4,553,144,212
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Profile of the All Cases Receiving Compensation as at 31 December 2022
R-BZZF+ZA=1+—HREEEENEHEERAZSGTER

Table 1: Profile of the ‘Old Case’ Pneumoconiosis Patients

EX— [EER] BAZRHER
Average degree of
Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
T8 K TERED
FieH Al B/AAE T F il BEADE
60-69 12 67 30
ANTESRTNR
70-79 73 75 22
+t1+EL+ B
® 6069 ~t+E~thE 80 and above 64 85 25
@ 7079 t+zttnm L TPAMRE
Total 149 79 24

@ 30 and above N\ FEEI

Table 2: Profile of the ‘New Case’ Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma Patients

BR= [HER]BAZ G AR
Average degree of
Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
FI9 KR TERE S
F Al 5B BmAAE S Fil BEADE
30-39 1 [1] 32 100
=FTE=+TNm
40-49 4 [3] 46 14
PU+Z M+ AUpR
50-59 23 [5] 56 21
ATER TR
60-69 534 [7] 66 15
NTENRT B
© 3039 =+==tns 70-79 508 [9] 74 16
O 4049 m+Em+hE ++Em++hs
® 5050 H+=H+AE 80 and above 176 [7] 85 21
® 6069 ~tzxthm [ THERAE
. 70-79 3 b+ ;;;akl 1 246 [32] 71 16

@ 80 and above N\ FEE L

Note:

i

[ AEFRERBEPERESEZ AL -

Figures in brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTIIR)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B-= —Eo-F CZEC-EF C—E-hE —B-N\F
($'000)
Income WA
Levies 6N 395,378 365,137 358,404 336,279 367,552
Interest 8 30,163 17,609 47,363 55,974 42,349
Others HlgA 16,477* 14,916 15,149 17,377 52,366
Fair value gain on financial WRAREEARS
assets (Tracker Fund) MEEZARE
e
(BEED) — — 1,466 15,568 —
Total income FCLION 442,018 397,662 422,382 425,198 462,267
Expenditure X
Compensation wHE 220,518 226,473 209,100 212,997 213,464
Project expenses EEX 59,607 54,083 39,671 48,671 43,955
Staff, administrative and other e THERK
expenses HF% 26,385 27,241 27,423 27,218 30,194
Depreciation/Amortisation & # 1,043 929 1,344 1,244 973
Capital expenditure BARRX 565 746 698 633 715
Exchange loss/Fair value loss on (B EE,/ AR
financial assets BEAESRE
(Tracker Fund) EZAREE
BE(BEES) 28,940 44,180 — — 19,526
Total expenditure ok 337,058 353,652 278,236 290,763 308,827
Surplus for the year REEREK 104,960 44,010 144,146 134,435 153,440
Transfer from capital reserve A REERL 1,043 929 1,344 1,243 7,581
Transfer from investment reserve  miFEFEERH — — — — 39,585
Accumulated fund brought FFERIR
forward 2,931,279 2,882,502 2,730,280 2,584,070 2,373,536
3,037,282 2,927,441 2,875,770 2,719,748 2,574,142
Transfer to project funds/ BAERHES
computer systems BEMEGES
fund/capital reserve/ EARE/
investment reserve RERE (59,917) (54,853) (40,176) (49,795) (45,176)
Transfer from project funds to REEES B H I
compensate project i<l aba
expenses 70,773 58,691 46,908 60,327 55,104
Accumulated fund carried BTEErER
forward 2e 3,048,138 2,931,279 2,882,502 2,730,280 2,584,070
* Others include dividend income from listed securities amounting to $15,948,103, Ex-gratia Fund administration charge

received of $130,454, penalty of $398,494 on late payments of levies and sundry income of $171.

* HW A BIERE EHE7AER S 15,948,103 7T - KEREERMEEUZTTIRE M 130,454 7T - BIESBGRATEELZ
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